
 

AGENDA 

 
 



1 

 

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL 

Hopewell, Virginia 23860 

CITY COUNCIL 
Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward #4 

Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward #7 
Debbie Randolph, Councilor, Ward #1 
Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward #2 

John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward #3 
Janice Denton, Councilor, Ward #5 

Brenda S. Pelham, Councilor, Ward #6 
 

John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 
Sandra. Robinson, City Attorney 
Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

AGENDA 

(804) 541-2249 

www.hopewellva.gov 

info@hopewellva.gov 

rarrington@hopewellva.gov 

 September 24, 2019 COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

300 N MAIN ST. HOPEWELL VA 
Closed Meeting:  5:30 PM 

Regular Meeting: 7:30 PM 

 

OPEN MEETING 

5:30 p.m.        Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

Roll Call 

CLOSED MEETING 

Move to go into closed meeting pursuant to Va. Code Sections 2.2-3711 

(A)(1) to discuss and consider personnel matters, including the appointment, assignment, salaries, and 

performance of specific appointees and to consider prospective candidates for appointment to various boards 

and commissions of the City Council, including Community Policy and Management Team; and  

 (A)(4)  for the protection of the privacy of individuals in personal matters not related to public business. 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO VIRGINIA CODE  § 2.2-3712 (D): Were only public business 

matters (1) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (2) identified in the closed-

meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? 

 Roll Call 

REGULAR MEETING 

7:30 p.m.        Call to order, roll call, and welcome to visitors 

Prayer by Rev. Joyce Harville of First Christian Baptist, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

of the United States of America led by Vice Mayor Bennett. 

SUGGESTED MOTION:       To amend/adopt Regular Meeting agenda 

Roll Call 

  

1

mailto:info@hopewellva.gov


2 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or 

received by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion 

under the regular agenda at the request of any Councilor.  

C-1   Minutes:  September 10, 2019 

1. Attachment 

C-2   Pending List:  Due October 9, 2019 

C-3   Routine Approval of Work Sessions:  None 

C-4   Personnel Change Report & Financial Report: 

1. Personnel Report 

2. Finance Report 

C-5   Ordinances on Second & Final Reading:  None 

C-6   Routine Grant Approval:  None 

C-7   Public Hearing Announcement: None 

C-8   Information for Council Review:  Minutes: CPMT August 2019; Planning Commission July 2019 

1. Attachments 

C-9   Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations: 

C-10  Public Hearing Announcement: 

SUGGESTED MOTION:    To amend/adopt consent agenda 

Public Hearings 

CITY CLERK: All persons addressing Council shall approach the microphone, give name and, if they 

reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to five minutes. No person shall be permitted to 

address the Council a second time until all others have been heard, and no one may speak more than twice 

on any subject in any one meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, any questions 

must be asked through the mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. 

Any person who makes personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly 

conduct in Council Chambers may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council and 

removed, subject to appeal to a majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406) 

NONE 

 

 

Communications from Citizens 
CITY CLERK: A Communications from Citizens period, limited in total time to 30 minutes, is part of the 

Order of Business at each regular Council meeting. All persons addressing Council shall approach the 

microphone, give name and, if they reside in Hopewell, their ward number, and limit comments to three 

minutes. No one is permitted to speak on any item scheduled for consideration on the regular agenda of the 

meeting. All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, any questions must be asked through the 

mayor only, and there shall be no discussion without permission of the mayor. Any person who makes 

personal, impertinent, abusive, or slanderous statements, or incites disorderly conduct in Council Chambers, 

may be barred by the mayor from further audience before Council and removed, subject to appeal to a 

majority of Council. (See Rules 405 and 406.) 
  

2



3 

 

  

Regular Business 
 

Reports of City Manager: 

  

R-1 CAFR Update 

 

R-2 Presentations and Awards - Parks & Recreation Awards (Aaron Reidmiller); Building an Early 

Learning Nation Grant (Mayor Gore) 

 

 

R-3 Pavement Management Program Update 

 

ISSUE:  Provide update on the Pavement Management Program to Council  

 

R-4 FY 21 and FY 22 VDOT Revenue Sharing Applications 

 

ISSUE:  The current application cycle for the Revenue Sharing Program started on May 15, 2019 for 

funding in fiscal years 2021 and 2022.  The deadline for application completion is October 1, 2019 

at 5:00 PM. City staff has identified three new (3) projects and created three pre-applications: 

The total local match for all three (3) projects over FY 2021 and 2022 would be $995,316 with a total 

estimated value of work at $1,990,632.  For VDOT to consider the City’s applications for Revenue 

Sharing Program matching state funds in FY 2021 and 2022 applications must include a resolution 

committing to the projects and the local match. City staff also requests that the City formally endorse 

and add each project to the City’s current Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

Council Action Items: 

 

1. Council review of various software packages 

 

ISSUE:  Several software packages have been purchased and/or funded through City Council. It is 

believed that these software packages benefit more than just City Council, and therefore should not 

have been funded by Council. I am requesting that Council review these packages and decide as to 

how they should be properly funded and budgeted going forward. 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

2. Communication between City Councilor and the Treasurer’s Office 

 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

  

3



4 

 

 

3. Gore/Pelham - Local historic marker program  

 

 ISSUE: Request that City Council establish a Local Historic Marker Program. The program was 

established in the Commonwealth because "proposed marker subjects do not meet the criteria for 

the state system because they are of local significance rather than of state, regional, or national 

importance. The Code of Virginia empowers local governments to establish marker programs to 

commemorate persons or events of local significance, provided that the local markers look different 

from the state ones." 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

4. Creation of Ashford Kent Ad-Hoc Committee 

 

ISSUE:  The Mayor of Hopewell was invited to attend a celebration of the twinning of Ashford Kent, 

UK and the City of Hopewell, Virginia. There were several suggestions made by members of this 

Council and the Twinning Committee.  Ashford Kent has moved the celebration to next year. The 

Mayor would like to create an Ad-Hoc Committee consisting of the Mayor, Vice Mayor, Mr. Bragg, 

and two members of the Twinning Association, to work with the Mayor’s office and Ashford Kent 

to plan a celebration. 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

Reports of City Attorney: 
 

Reports of City Clerk: 
 

1 List of vacancies; resignation of board members 

2 Transportation Board 

3 Community Policy Management Team (CPMT) 

 

Reports of City Council:  
 

Committees: 
  

 Local Government Advisory  Committee (LGAC) to the Executive Council of the Chesapeake Bay Report 

by Mayor Gore 

 

Individual Councilors 
  

IR-1 Randolph – Limiting IR and CCR items - Requesting that a work session be set to discuss limiting 

Council IR and CCR items on the agenda (return item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-2 Randolph - Discussion of Historic Preservation Committee (return item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

4



5 

 

IR-3 Partin - New Curb and Gutter Program (return item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-4 Gore – Request to eliminate 3-hour time rule for all Council meetings (return item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-5 Denton – Office keys – requesting keys to all areas of City Council suite (new item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-6 Gore – Request to amend agenda template to include section for Strategic Plan updates/progress 

report (new item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-7 Gore - Recognition of Hopewell Tree Stewards (new item) 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

IR-8 Gore - Tree City USA (new item) 

ISSUE:   

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

Citizen/Councilor Requests 
  

Presentations form Boards and Commissions 
 

Other Council Communications 

Adjournment 
  

5



 
REGULAR 
MEETING 

 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 



 

MINUTES 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 A meeting of the Hopewell City Council was held Tuesday, September 10, 2019, at 5:30 p.m. in the 

City Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 300 North Main Street, Hopewell, Virginia. 

 

   PRESENT: Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor, Ward 4 

     Patience Bennett, Vice Mayor, Ward 7 (arrived at 5:52 p.m.) 

     Deborah Randolph, Councilor, Ward 1 

     Arlene Holloway, Councilor, Ward 2 

     John B. Partin, Jr., Councilor, Ward 3 (arrived 7:02 p.m.) 

     Janice B. Denton, Councilor, Ward 5 

     Brenda Pelham, Councilor, Ward 6 

   

     John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

     Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager 

     Sandra R. Robinson, City Attorney 

     Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

     Debra McKnight, Assistant City Clerk 

 

   ABSENT: None 

ROLL CALL 

 

 Mayor Gore opened the meeting at 5:32 p.m. Roll call was taken as follows: 

 

    Mayor Gore   - present 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - absent (arrived at 5:52 p.m.) 

    Councilor Randolph  - present 

    Councilor Partin  - absent (arrived at 7:02 p.m.) 

    Councilor Holloway  - present 

    Councilor Denton  - present  

    Councilor Pelham  - present 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 At 5:33 p.m., Councilor Pelham moved to go into closed meeting Move to go into closed meeting 

pursuant to the following sections of Va. Code Sections 2.2-3711: (A)(1) to discuss and consider personnel 

matters, including the specific assignment, appointment, performance, and salaries of specific appointees; A)(7) 

and (A)(8) to consult with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice, 

and be briefed by counsel and staff members pertaining to actual and probable litigation, where such 

consultation or briefing in open meeting would adversely affect the negotiating or litigating posture of the public 

body; and to the extent that such discussions will be aided thereby, (A)(4) to protect the privacy of individuals in 

personal matters not related to public business.  Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - --- (arrived at 5:52 p.m.) 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - --- (arrived at 7:02 p.m.) 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

 

Motion passed 5-0 

 

6



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

2 
 

RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

 

At 7:39 p.m. Council returned to the dais and responded to the question pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-

3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (II) 

identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll call, the responses resulted: 

 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 Mayor Gore requested a roll call as follows: 

 

    Councilor Pelham   - present 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - present 

    Councilor Randolph  - present 

    Councilor Holloway  - present 

    Councilor Partin  - present 

    Mayor Gore   - present 

    Councilor Denton  - present 

 

PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF   

AMERICA 

  

Mayor Gore called the meeting to order, and thanked all for attending. The prayer was led by Charles 

Dane. Assistant City Manager, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, 

led by Councilor Pelham. 

 

AMEND AGENDA 
 

 Vice Mayor Bennett to remove item R-4 and bring it back after the work session, to be held October 

2, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. The motion was seconded by Councilor Partin.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

  

7



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

3 
 

Consent Agenda 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by Council and will be approved or received 

by one motion in the form listed. Items may be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion under the regular 

agenda at the request of any Councilor. 

 

C-1   Minutes:  Minutes of Council's 8-13-19, 8-15-19 and 8-20-19 meetings. 

1. (Attachments) 

C-2   Pending List: 
1. Additional pending list - see attached 

2. See Attached 

3. Third pending list - see attached 

C-3   Routine Approval of Work Sessions: September 24, 2019 - work session for Conditional Use Permit - 

 106 N Main Street 

C-4   Personnel Change Report & Financial Report: 
1. Attachments 

C-5   Ordinances on Second & Final Reading: 

C-6   Routine Grant Approval: 

C-7   Public Hearing Announcement:  
C-8   Information for Council Review:  Minutes: ARB 7-22-19; 8-19-19; BOE 7-3-19, 7-24-19, 7-31-19, 

DDRC - 7-3-19, 8-7-19; HRHA 6-10-19; KHB 7-10-19; PART 5-17-19 

1. Attachments 

C-9   Resolutions/Proclamations/Presentations:  Marketing matrix video presentation by Charles Dane, 

Assistant City Manager 

C-10 Public Hearing Announcement: 
 

 Councilor Pelham moved to Motion to move the proclamation and make it item R-1, move the I Love 

Hopewell initiative to R-4, and make the Pending List items R-5 – all remaining items to shift up or down 

respectively. Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

    

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

NONE 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NONE 

  

8



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

4 
 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITIZENS 

 

 Ms. Dorothy Flowers came forward and spoke to Council regarding her concerns with the mold that is in 

her apartment. She said she had gone to HRHA about the issue, but with no results. She said she had gone to the 

HRHA meeting and shown her pictures to three members of the Board. Mayor Gore asked Ms. Flowers to give 

her information to the City Manager. Councilor Pelham asked Sandra Robinson, the City Attorney to provide 

information regarding HRHA’s mold remediation requirements for its housing. Mayor Gore asked that the City 

Attorney copy all of Council on her findings. 

 

 Mark Haley of Ward 3 came forward to discuss Agenda item $-4. He urged that Council proceed with 

caution regarding R-4. He said that the $35,000 limitation could cause emergency issues with Wastewater. He 

said that the previous ordinances were fine. He also said that banning people from City Hall had occurred in the 

past for people dealing with mental incapacity. 

 

 Larry Scarce of Ward 3 spoke regarding the field behind the WHAP building. He said the field behind the 

houses is overgrown and needs to be cut.  

 

 Yolanda Stokes of Ward 6 came before council and thanked the councilors who attended the Twin Rivers 

Neighborhood Watch. She also spoke about someone who was homeless and had been on the HRHA list for nine 

years, and asked if Council could provide assistance, 

 

 Shamika Lewis of Ward 7 spoke to Council regarding her concern for Hopewell.  

 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

 

Reports of City Manager: 

 

R-1 Presentations and Proclamations - Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager presented the 

 marketing matrix video. Councilor Randolph asked how much the production of the video cost. The 

 response was $23,000. 

  

 Mayor Gore and Vice Mayor Bennett presented a proclamation to the Liberty Chapel Gospel 

 Service Men’s Ministry for their excellent work with the Woodlawn Learning Center Complex 

 Community Garden. Vice Mayor Bennett noted that each of the organization members were either 

 Veterans or children of veterans. 

 

R-2 Considerations for Homeless Shelter Services  

ISSUE: City Council has asked staff to research and assess the following two matters related to the 

operation of the City’s Seasonal Homeless Shelter: 1) To operate the Shelter by creating City staff 

positions vs. employing the services of a private contractor; and 2) To explore the cost of funding for 

year-round vs. seasonal sheltering. 

Ray Spicer, Director of Social Services presented information to Council regarding this item.  Mr. Dane 

said that they would bid this item out, and if the bids come back to high, will return to Council. Councilor 

Partin moved to go with the option of doing the Shelter seasonally, using the contractor to service the 

Shelter. His motion was seconded by Councilor Denton. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

9



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

5 
 

R-2  Homeless Shelter Services (vote)    

 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

R-3 City Council Boards, Commissions and Authorities Annual Report  

ISSUE:  City boards, commissions and authorities are required to report back to City Council annually. 

For years, not all boards have been reporting back to the Governing Body, or submitting meeting minutes.  

Mayor Gore advised Council that several boards, committees and commissions had not been providing 

Council with the annual reports that are required per Council Rules. She requested that the boards be made 

to comply with this rule. Councilor Pelham moved to approve the Council boards and commissions 

making annual reports to Council, and for the Clerk to create a master calendar of the presentations, and 

for the Clerk to send Council information if any Board is unable to present. Her motion was seconded by 

Vice Mayor Bennett.  Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

R-4 Chief Elected Official Consortium Agreement 

ISSUE:  The City needs to pass a resolution for the Execution of the Crater Regional Workforce 

Development Board. 

Mayor Gore provided Council with information regarding this item. Councilor Pelham moved to approve 

the Agreement as written and to approve Mayor Gore to act on behalf of the City. Mayor Gore seconded 

her motion. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

10



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

6 
 

R-5 I Love Hopewell Showcase – Mayor Gore updated Council on the status of the I Love Hopewell 

 Showcase and its various initiatives. She noted that most of the initiates are either sponsored events or in 

 kind services. Council requested that any item that would cost money brought back before Council. 

Councilor Pelham moved to approve the continuation of the I Love Hopewell Showcase initiative through 

the end of the calendar year, and for Mayor Gore to report back to Council with more definitive 

information on costs, and that an extension of the initiative into the new calendar year and/or any new 

City funding needed to do projects or initiatives would come back to Council for approval. Her motion 

was seconded by Vice Mayor Bennett. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

EXTEND MEETING 

 

 Councilor Pelham moved to waive Council rules and extend the meeting long enough to complete the review 

of the Pending List and to complete the report out to Staff about Council’s discussion in Closed Session. Her 

motion was seconded by Councilor Partin. Upon the roll call, the vote resulted: 

 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

    Councilor Pelham  - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

 

R-6 Pending List – There were three pending lists included in Council’s packet.  Council reviewed each 

 item and either updated or discarded the items, consolidating the three lists into one.  Council selected 

 six items as Priority Items, and by consensus, requested that the City Manager provide an update each 

 month,  beginning with the October 9, 2019 meeting. 

 

CLOSED MEETING 

 

 At 10:32 p.m., Councilor Pelham moved to go into closed meeting  pursuant to Va. Code Sections 2.2-

3711: (A)(1) to discuss and consider personnel matters, including the specific assignment, appointment, 

performance, and salaries of specific appointees.  Mayor Gore seconded the motion. Upon the roll call, the vote 

resulted: 

  

11



DRAFT 

September 10, 2019 

Regular Meeting 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

7 
 

CLOSED MEETING (vote) 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

 

 RECONVENE OPEN MEETING 

 

At 11:10 p.m. Council returned to the dais and responded to the question pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-

3712 (D): were only public business matters (I) lawfully exempted from open-meeting requirements and (II) 

identified in the closed-meeting motion discussed in closed meeting? Upon the roll call, the responses resulted: 

 

    Councilor Pelham   - yes 

    Vice Mayor Bennett  - yes 

    Councilor Randolph  - yes 

    Councilor Holloway  - yes 

    Councilor Partin  - yes 

    Mayor Gore   - yes 

    Councilor Denton  - yes 

Motion passed 7-0 

 

COUNCIL INTERN 

 

 Upon discussion of Councilor, it was agreed by consensus that the Council Intern, Patrice Shelton, be 

paid from the Contingency Fund. 

 

ADJOURN 

 

 At 11:15 p.m., Councilor Partin moved to adjourn the meeting. His motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 

Bennett. All answered in favor. 

     

      /s/ Jasmine E. Gore    

       Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 

 

 

/s/ Ronnieye L. Arrington  

Ronnieye L. Arrington, City Clerk 

12



 

PERSONNEL 
CHANGE 
REPORT 



 
 
DATE:  September 11, 2019 

TO:  The Honorable City Council 

FROM:  Michelle Ingram, Human Resources Specialist  

SUBJECT: Personnel Change Report – September 2019 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
LANGLEY, ROBERT WATER RENEWAL SR ELEC & INS TECH 09/04/2019 

 
 

SUSPENSIONS: 0 

(Other information excluded under Va. Code § 2.2-3705.1(1) as personnel information concerning 
identifiable individuals)  

 

REMOVALS: 

NAME DEPARTMENT POSITION DATE 
BUCCIARELLI, MARIA RECREATION PT CUST SVC AGENT 08/21/2019 

DAUGHERTY, KOURTNEY POLICE POLICE OFFICER 08/27/2019 
MELLENDORF, BRANDY POLICE ANIMAL SHELTER CUST 08/29/2019 

PARSIO, KIMBERLY CIRCUIT COURT CIR CRT DEP CLK 09/10/2019 
 
 
 
 

CC: March Altman, City Manager     Concetta Manker, IT Director 
Charles Dane, Assistant City Manager   Jay Rezin, IT 
Jennifer Sears, HR Director    Arlethia Dearing, Customer Service Mgr. 
Dave Harless, Risk & Safety Coordinator  Kim Hunter, Payroll 
Debbie Pershing, Administrative Services Manager Vanessa Williams, Accounting Tech 
Michael Terry, Finance Director 
Dipo Muritala, Assistant Finance Director 
  

13



 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

 



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



  

INFORMATION 
FOR COUNCIL 

REVIEW 
 



1 

 

                                  

 

 

 

 

Hopewell Community Policy & Management Team  
 

Minutes of the Meeting 
 

August 19, 2019 
 

 
 
 
 

Present:; Chairman Jermaine Harris, Hopewell Public Schools; Diana Barnes, D19 CSB; 
Woodrow Harris, Court Services; Raymond Spicer, Social Services Director; Joan Gosier, Fiscal 
Agent 

Absent: Janice Denton, City Council; Chris Wright, Vice-Chair  

 

Others Present: Wanda Brown, CSA Manager; Ebony L. Ross, CSA Specialist 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 I.    Call to Order –Chairman Jermaine Harris called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

II.   Adoption of Agenda – A motion was made by Woody Harris and seconded by Raymond 
Spicer to adopt the July 15, 2019 meeting agenda. There were no additions, changes, or 
opposes. All members voted “aye.” 

 

III.   Public Comments - None 
 
 
 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes – A motion was made by Woody Harris and seconded by Diana Barnes 
to approve the July 15, 2019 minutes as submitted. Ray Spicer could not go along with 
approval of the minutes due to having questions in regard to Joan being a member of 
CPMT. He questioned if she was voted in by City Council.  Wanda Brown advised she was 
voted in by City Council. Diana Barnes stated a Fiscal Agent was a mandated position and 
Woody confirmed Ms. Barnes’ statement. It was also explained that Joe Bizzell is proxy 
when Joan Gosier is unable to attend. It was requested by Chairman Jermaine Harris to 
make clarification that only one person’s name from the Treasurer’s Office should be listed 
in the minutes for voting and it will reflect in the minutes going forward. 

  
 

 

V. Financial Report –   CSA Manager Wanda Brown advised 2019 Fiscal Year has not been 
closed and is still working on June invoices. CSA is over budget and an email has been sent 
to Joan Gosier, Chairman Jermaine Harris, and March Altman in regards to this matter. 
Purchase Orders have been done prior to service being completed. Going forward the CSA 
office will know ahead of time if it goes over budget. A financial report was provided to all 
members present for July 2019 and YTD. For the month of July 1444.00 had been paid and 
$665,038.37 was encumbered which is 22.6% of the FY 2020 budget. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31



2 

 

 
 
 
 

CMPT Minutes 
August 19, 2019 
    
.. 
 

 

VI.   Old Business 
A. Policy & Procedures – Chairman Jermaine Harris stated that the policies and 

procedures are close to being finalized. Another meeting is scheduled for August 
23, 2019. 

VII. New Business 
A. Wanda L. Brown expressed OCS will be coming in on September 16, 2019 to 

complete the entrance process for the official audit. This date will also be the 
same date for the next scheduled CPMT date. The auditor has already supplied 
a list of names for the audit. CSA Specialist Ebony L. Ross will be pulling the files 
to ensure all documents required for the audit are in the files. 

B. Questions arose in regards to the Quality Improvement Plan. City Council also 
wanted to know about changes being made to the Quality Improvement Plan. 
As of 2017 Case Workers must initial invoice. It was also acknowledged that the 
audit cannot be completed until QIP is completed. The QIP discussion points 
were addressed by CPMT. 

 
 

 
VIII. Closed Meeting –Chairman Jermaine Harris declared at 3:22 p.m. to enter into a Closed 
Meeting, pursuant to §2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia for the purpose of discussing or 
considering child-specific purchase order requests, which is authorized by §2.2-3711(A)(4) of 
the Code of Virginia.    
 

 
 

Certification of Closed Meeting 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, the Community Policy and Management 
Team certify that, to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters 
lawfully exempt from open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act, and (ii) only such business matters as were identified in the motion by 
which the Closed Meeting was convened, heard, discussed, or considered. Chairman 
Jermaine Harris, Wanda Brown, Woody Harris, Ray Spicer, Diana Barnes, and Joan Gosier 
voting “yes.”  Joseph Bizzell, Janice Denton, and Chris Wright were absent.   

 
 
 
IX. Open Session 

Chairman Jermaine Harris reconvened the open session at 3:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



3 

 

 
CMPT Minutes 
August 19, 2019 

 
 

A.     Approval of Purchase Order Request 
 A motion was made by Woody Harris, and seconded by Janice Denton to approve and 
authorize payment of the June 2019 total expenditures of $2,416.00 and to approve and 
authorize payment of the July 2019 expenditures of $270,424.32 as discussed. The motion 
passed with, Chairman Jermaine Harris, Wanda Brown, Woody Harris, Ray Spicer, Diana 
Barnes, and Joan Gosier voting “yes.”  Joseph Bizzell, Janice Denton, and Chris Wright were 
absent.   

 
      

X.Items of Interest -Joan Gosier (Treasurer) advised two full time positions are now available 
in the treasures office. Chairman Jermaine Harris (Director of Student Services) also is in search 
of an in-house Social Worker and Behavior Specialist. 

 
XI. The next meeting is scheduled for September 16, 2019 @ 2:00 p.m. 
 

XII. Chairman Jermaine Harris adjourned the meeting at 4:06 p.m. 
VIII.  

 
 

 

33



 
REGULAR 
BUSINESS 

 



REPORTS 
OF THE 

CITY 
MANAGER 

 



 
R-1 

 
 



 
 
SUMMARY: 
Y N       Y N  
□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 
□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 
□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 
       

  

 
CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 
 

 
Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 
Culture & Recreation  
Economic Development 
Education 
Housing 
Safe & Healthy Environment  
None (Does not apply) 

 
Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    
Public Hearing          
Presentation-Boards/Commissions  
Unfinished Business            
Citizen/Councilor Request      
Regular Business 
Reports of Council Committees  

 

 
Action: 

Approve and File  
Take Appropriate Action  
Receive & File (no motion required) 
Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 
Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 
  Set a Public Hearing       
Approve on Emergency Measure  

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     
CAFR Update 

ISSUE:  Update on status of CAFRs 

RECOMMENDATION:  No action is required 

TIMING:  
 
BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

• None 

STAFF:    
John M. Altman, Jr., City Manager 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 
MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  
 



 
R-2 

 
 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Recreation and Parks Awards Presentation 

ISSUE:  Hopewell Recreation and Parks received numerous awards at the 2019 Virginia 

Recreation and Park Society annual conference.  The Department will present awards with 

additional information to City Council.   

RECOMMENDATION:  The administration will present awards and supporting information.   

TIMING: The presentation will be given at the September 24, 2019, meeting of City Council. 

 

BACKGROUND: None. 

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

None. 

STAFF 

Aaron Reidmiller, Director of Recreation and Parks 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

34



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Building An Early Learning Nation 

ISSUE:  Presentation 

RECOMMENDATION:  No Action requested 

TIMING:  

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 The City of Hopewell – Early Childhood Priority Areas 

STAFF:    

Jasmine E. Gore, Mayor 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

35



The City of Hopewell, through participation in the National League of Cities’ Early Learning 

Nation Initiative has chosen to focus on six key early childhood priority areas that support our 
overall vision that every child in Hopewell is ready for school and ready for life.  

1. Access to High-Quality Preschool: Hopewell is fortunate to be part of the great state 
of Virginia where children have access to preschool through both the Virginia Preschool 
Initiative and Head Start, both of which provide high-quality early learning experiences 
for children. However, the need in Hopewell far exceeds the available resources and 
many of our children do not have access to high-quality preschool experiences. In order 
to achieve our goal of every child ready for school, children need access to 
opportunities, learning experiences, and interactions that will allow them to be successful 
when they enter kindergarten.  
  

2. Support for High-Quality Childcare: In Hopewell, 78.7% of households with children 
under six have all adult members working, which means the need for childcare in our 
community is high. If adults are going to be successfully engaged in the workforce, then 
they need to know that their children are well looked after. Unfortunately, there is a lack 
of high-quality childcare options in Hopewell. Many of our children are in informal 
networks of care provided by friends or family or in childcare centers that are rated low in 
Virginia’s Quality Rating Improvement System. In order to achieve our goal of every child 
ready for school, children need access to opportunities, learning experiences, and 
interactions that will allow them to be successful when they enter kindergarten.  
 

3. Parent and Family Engagement: Parents and families are children’s first and foremost 

teacher and for many of our children most of the learning done in the first five years is 
done at home and not in a formal classroom environment. However, for many of our 
families, especially those living in poverty or experiencing trauma, extra support is 
needed to help them become actively engaged as partners in their children’s learning. In 
order to achieve our goal of every child ready for school, families need to be engaged as 
critical partners in helping their children be successful.  
 

4. Wrap-Around Services: It often takes much more than just what happens inside a 
classroom for children to be successful in school and ready to learn. Just as we 
emphasize whole-child education and the importance of physical, cognitive and social 
and emotional development of children, as a community we must also be cognizant of 
and supportive in helping to address outside factors that may impact a child’s readiness 
to learn. Children cannot be successful in school if they come to school hungry, sick, or 
distracted by trauma outside of school. In order to achieve our goal of every child ready 
for school, children need access to resources and wrap-around services to help them 
address the very real challenges that can often impact their ability to learn and be 
successful.  
 

5. Military Partnerships: Hopewell is proud to be a neighbor to many of our military 
families housed at the Fort Lee military base. It is essential that our community 
continues to build strong partnerships so that the children of military families can feel 
supported and integrated into the Hopewell community and that they are able to be 
successful when they enter kindergarten. 

36



6. Trauma Informed Care: Hopewell is a great community that prides itself on our 
resiliency and generosity of spirit. However, there are families in our community that are 
suffering from trauma whether it is through the adverse effects of poverty, addiction, 
incarceration, or domestic violence. The research is clear on the impact that trauma can 
have on young children and their physical, cognitive, and social emotional development. 
In order to achieve our goal of every child ready for school, educators and community 
members need to understand the impact of trauma and create systems for trauma 
informed care that can help to mitigate those effects.  
 

 

 

37



 

 

 

 

 

 

R-3 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Pavement Management Program Update 

ISSUE:  Provide update on the Pavement Management Program to Council 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Pavement Management Maps – Past and Current Fiscal Years 

STAFF:    

Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 

Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

38



AN OVERVIEW PRESENTATION 

39



 PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION - MILLING EXISTING 

PAVEMENT AND OVERLAY WITH NEW SURFACE

 PAVEMENT BASE REPAIR – PATCHING FULL PAVEMENT 

SECTION AND/OR COMPROMISED SUBGRADE

 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION/PRESERVATION

 PAVEMENT MARKINGS - MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF LANE 

LINES, STOP BARS, SYMBOLS, ARROWS, ETC.

40



 FISCAL YEAR 2016 - $350,000

 FISCAL YEAR 2017 - $550,000

 FISCAL YEAR 2018 - $680,000

 FISCAL YEAR 2019 - $350,000

41



 REVENUE SHARING PROGRAM- 50% 

STATE MATCH OF LOCAL FUNDS

 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR – 100% 

STATE MATCH OF LOCAL FUNDS

42



 REVENUE SHARING PROGRAM
◦ LOCALITY FUNDS MATCHED WITH STATE 

FUNDS FOR QUALIFYING PROJECTS

◦ PROJECT ADMINISTRATION PERFORMED BY 
CITY OF HOPEWELL
 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

 SITE INSPECTION, QUALITY CONTROL

 MATERIALS NOTEBOOK AND INVOICE 
REIMBURSEMENT

43



44



 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM
 ROUTE 10 – APPOMATTOX RIVER BRIDGE TO CITY 

POINT ROAD (COMPLETED FALL 2017)

 ROUTE 10 – HUMMEL ROSS RD TO PG LINE 
(COMPLETED FALL 2017)

 ROUTE 156 – ARLINGTON ROAD TO PLANT STREET 
(COMPLETED FALL 2018)

 ROUTE 10 – WINSTON CHURCHILL DRIVE TO 
HUMMEL ROSS ROAD (COMPLETED SPRING 2019)

 ROUTE 36 – ARLINGTON ROAD AND S 15TH AVE TO 
CITY POINT ROAD (PLANNED FALL 2019)

45



46



47



48



49



50



 SELECTION PROCESS OF TARGET STREETS
◦ PAVEMENT CONDITION / AGE OF PAVEMENT

◦ STATE FUNDING ELIGABILITY

◦ AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC AND STREET CLASSIFICATION

 PRIMARY ROUTES (ROUTE 10, 36, 156)

 PRIMARY ARTERIALS (BROADWAY, CEDAR LEVEL ROAD, CITY 

POINT RD, MESA DRIVE, RIVER ROAD)

 NEIGBORHOOD COLLECTOR STREETS (MILES AVE, DANVILLE 

AVE, APPOMATTOX ST, JACKSON FARM RD)

 RESIDENTIAL STREETS

◦ UNDERGROUND UTILITY ISSUES

◦ DRAINAGE CAPACITY ISSUES

51



D
IN

W
ID

D
IE

 A
V

E

EMERGENCY C
ROSS-O

VER

N
 295 H

W
Y

N
 295 H

W
Y

A
U

T
U

M
N

 D
R

SPRING RD

D
E

V
O

N
 C

R
T

PIPER SQ
U

AR
E

D
R

CHESHIRE DR

SAINT THOMAS RD

S
A

IN
T

T
H

O
M

A
S

R
D

BRANDYWINE DR

AUTUMN TERR

MONROE AVE

MONROE AVE

AUTUMN DR

HUNTINGTON CT

AUTUMN CT

BRANDYWINE DR

N
 295 H

W
Y

BEXLEY DR

S 295 H
W

Y

H
YD

E
PA

R
K

D
R

D
R

BRANDYWINE DR

BRANDYWINE DR

O
L

D
 IR

O
N

 R
D

W
E

S
T

B
R

O
O

K
 R

D

MONROE AVE

ED
IN

B
U

R
G

 C
R

T

O
L

D
 IR

O
N

 R
D

W
E

S
T

B
R

O
O

K
 R

DB
E

X
L

E
Y

 D
R

SAINT THOMAS RD

ROSELAWN TER

O
L

D
IR

O
N

R
D

BRANDYWINE DR

W
E

S
T

B
R

O
O

K
 R

D

W
E

S
T

B
R

O
O

K
R

D

M
Y

R
T

LE
D

R

P
R

UETT
DR

PRUETT DR

O
L

D
 IR

O
N

 R
D

CHESHIRE DR

CHESHIRE DR

O
LD

IR
O

N
R

D

O
L

D
 IR

O
N

 R
D

O
L

D
 IR

O
N

 R
D

B
U

TO
R

R
D

B
U

T
O

R
 R

D

B
U

T
O

R
R

D

B
U

T
O

R
R

D

OLD IRON CT

OLD IRON CT

OLD IRON CT

OLD IRON CT

FY 2020
Street Paving Program

City of Hopewell

Legend

Paving Projects 2020

Rehabilitation (NON-VDOT)

Corporate Limits

Street Linear Length

Huntington Ct 534'

Westbrook Rd 656'

Monroe Ave 1177'

Bexley Dr 725'

Autumn Terr 268'

Autumn Dr 736'

Autumn Ct 297'

St. Thomas Rd 946'

52



53



 

 

 

 

R-4 
 

 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

FY 21 and FY 22 VDOT Revenue Sharing Applications 

ISSUE:  The current application cycle for the Revenue Sharing Program started on May 15, 

2019 for funding in fiscal years 2021 and 2022.  The deadline for application completion is 

October 1, 2019 at 5:00 PM. 

City staff has identified three new (3) projects and created the following pre-applications: 

1. Application ID 5905 Pavement Rehabilitation – Various Local Streets 

2. Application ID 6011 Wagner Ave and Hooker St Reconstruction 

3. Application ID 6012 Hill Ave and Hooker St Reconstruction 

The total local match for all three (3) projects over FY 2021 and 2022 would be $995,316 with 

a total estimated value of work at $1,990,632.  For VDOT to consider the City’s applications 

for Revenue Sharing Program matching state funds in FY 2021 and 2022 applications must 

include a resolution committing to the projects and the local match. 

City staff also requests that the City formally endorse and add each project to the City’s current 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

RECOMMENDATION:  City staff recommends approval. 

TIMING: Staff requests Council action on September 24, 2019.  The local match funding 

commitment, project endorsement and CIP resolution is required by October 1, 2019 at 5 PM. 

 

BACKGROUND: FY 2021 and 2022 Revenue Sharing Program Call for Applications 

54



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 FY 2021 and 2022 Revenue Sharing Program Call for Applications 

 Project Cost Estimates 

STAFF:    

Johnnie Butler, City Engineer 

Austin Anderson, Construction Manager 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

55



Stephen C. Brich, P.E. 
Commissioner 

April 3, 2019 

COMMONWEALTH o/ VIRGINIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
1401 EAST BROAD STREET 

RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23219-2000 

To: County Administrators/City and Town Managers 

Subject: FY 2021 and FY 2022 Revenue Sharing Program 

The next application cycle for the Revenue Sharing Program will begin on May 15, 2019 for funding in 
fiscal years 2021 and 2022. This funding will be made available July 1, 2020 and July 1, 2021, respectively. 

New this year, applicants must submit a pre-application by July 1, 2019 at 5 PM in order to be 
considered for funding. All applications will be submitted via a web-based application procedure and 
will require your locality to be registered with an appropriate SMART Portal log-in account. If you have 
previously applied for Revenue Sharing, Transportation Alternatives, Highway Safety Improvement, 
State of Good Repair, or SMART Scale funds through the SMART Portal, you will use the same log-in 
credentials. 

Timeline for FY2021 and FY2022 Revenue Sharing Application Submittal: 

• May 15, 2019: Pre-Application cycle for FY 2021 and FY2022 opens. Your locality will enter
required information via the SMART Portal. Pre-application must be submitted by the deadline in
order to be considered for funding.

o Deadline for Pre-Application submission is July 1, 2019 at 5PM.

• No Later Than August 15, 2019: After your pre-application is approved, access will be
provided to your locality's full application to be completed and to upload required additional
documentation. Please note that your locality resolution supporting this application and
committing to the required local funding, along with all other required documentation, must be
uploaded with your application in order for your application to be considered. No extra time will
be provided for resolution submittal.( change from past years)

o Deadline for application completion is October 1, 2019 at 5PM.

As you develop your project applications, we encourage you to work closely with your District contacts 
regarding your project scope, budget, and schedule. Transportation projects can pose unique challenges 
and VDOT District staff can provide invaluable insight that may help you ensure you submit a complete 
application which addresses those challenges. 

As noted above, applicants must include a resolution committing to their local matching share. With this 
funding commitment, the Department's expectation is that the local project administration agreement will 
be executed and the project started expeditiously after the funds are authorized. Failure to execute the 
project administration agreement and initiate the project within established time-frames can jeopardize 
project funding. 

56



57



Item No. Spec. Item Description Unit Quantity

Unit Price (Dollars and 

Cents)

Extension

 (Quantity X Unit Price)

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

3 EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

4 CURB & GUTTER LF 3000 $35.00 $105,000.00

5a STORM SEWER - 15 INCH RCP LF 600 $95.00 $57,000.00

5b STORM SEWER - 18 INCH RCP LF 600 $125.00 $75,000.00

6 STORM SEWER - DROP INLETS EA 8 $4,000.00 $32,000.00

7 EXCAVATION CY 450 $35.00 $15,750.00

8 STONE - VDOT #21A/B TN 415 $30.00 $12,450.00

9 BASE PAVEMENT - HILL AVE AND HOOKER ST TN 220 $110.00 $24,200.00

10 SURFACE PAVEMENT - HILL AVE AND HOOKER ST TN 500 $90.00 $45,000.00

SUBTOTAL ESTIMATE AMOUNT $396,400.00

  10% CEI & CONTINGENCY   $19,820.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING $12,000.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - CONSTRUCTION $18,000.00

LOCALITY PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FEE $5,000.00

TOTAL ESTIMATE $451,220.00

CITY OF HOPEWELL, VA

Hill Ave Reconstruction between Hooker St and Jackson St FY 2021 and FY 2022 Revenue Sharing Program Application Estimate

58



Item No. Spec. Item Description Unit Quantity

Unit Price (Dollars and 

Cents)

Extension

 (Quantity X Unit Price)

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

3 PAVEMENT MILLING 0" TO 2" (EDGE MILLING ONLY) SY 26000 $2.04 $53,040.00

4 ASPHALT SM-9.5D VARIOUS STREETS SEE INCLUDED MAP TN 11500 $80.00 $920,000.00

SUBTOTAL ESTIMATE AMOUNT $1,003,040.00

  5% CEI & CONTINGENCY   $50,152.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING $12,000.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - CONSTRUCTION $18,000.00

LOCALITY PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FEE $5,000.00

TOTAL ESTIMATE $1,088,192.00

CITY OF HOPEWELL, VA

Pavement Resurfacing - Various Local Streets FY 2021 and FY 2022 Revenue Sharing Program Application Estimate

59



Item No. Spec. Item Description Unit Quantity

Unit Price (Dollars and 

Cents)

Extension

 (Quantity X Unit Price)

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

3 EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00

4 CURB & GUTTER LF 3000 $35.00 $105,000.00

5a STORM SEWER - 15 INCH RCP LF 600 $95.00 $57,000.00

5b STORM SEWER - 18 INCH RCP LF 600 $125.00 $75,000.00

6 STORM SEWER - DROP INLETS EA 8 $4,000.00 $32,000.00

7 EXCAVATION CY 450 $35.00 $15,750.00

8 STONE - VDOT #21A/B TN 415 $30.00 $12,450.00

9 BASE PAVEMENT - WAGNER AVE AND HOOKER ST TN 220 $110.00 $24,200.00

10 SURFACE PAVEMENT - WAGNER AVE AND HOOKER ST TN 500 $90.00 $45,000.00

SUBTOTAL ESTIMATE AMOUNT $396,400.00

  10% CEI & CONTINGENCY   $19,820.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING $12,000.00

ESTIMATED VDOT PROJECT EXPENSES - CONSTRUCTION $18,000.00

LOCALITY PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FEE $5,000.00

TOTAL ESTIMATE $451,220.00

CITY OF HOPEWELL, VA

Wagner Ave Reconstruction between Hooker St and Jackson St FY 2021 and FY 2022 Revenue Sharing Program Application Estimate

60



 

COUNCIL 

ACTION 

ITEMS 
 



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Council review of various software packages 

ISSUE:  Several software packages have been purchased and/or funded through City Council. 

It is believed that these software packages benefit more than just City Council, and therefore 

should not have been funded by Council. I am requesting that Council review these packages 

and decide as to how they should be properly funded and budgeted going forward. 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: Action is requested at the 9-24-19 meeting 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Municode Agreement 

 Municode Meeting Management  

 JustFOIA Agreement 

 

STAFF:    

Councilor Debbie Randolph 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

61



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 
62



Executive Summary 

We would like to propose the following option for your consideration. For further details on the project, please see 
page 7. 

Republication. Supplementation and MunicodeNEXT: 

Logic: Give your municipality a fresh start. Clean up the pagination, reprint all pages and replace binders and 
labs, if needed. Quickly and efficiently transition your code to the most advanced suite of web/mobile services 
available in the nation: MunicodeNEXT. 

h' Republication ................................................................................................... $17 ,8351 

ht Supplementation .............................................................................................. $19 per page 

h' Online hosting and support .............................................................................. $5502 

Pricing =Apples to Apples: 

Here are some important considerations to keep in mind: 

!.• The republication base cost of $17,835 is based on a 1,050 page, single column code; 

'" Supplement charges - single column per page rate of $19; 

'" The online code fee is only $550 for our basic service. 

'" If you would like to further enhance the transparency of your online code, you can elect the MyMunicode 

bundle for only $1,385! 

'·' Municode does not charge an extra fee for posting supplements on line. 

'" Municode does not charge an extra fee for printing your supplement pages. 

'" Municode does not charge a supplement handling fee. 

The supplement page rate is $19 for single column (including printing and posting each supplement on line). 

1 Please see page 4 for additional pricing details. 
2 Please see page 6 for additional features and pricing available on our MunicodeNEXT platform. 

Page 3 

63



Pricing Quotation Sheet 

Republication base cost, includes $17,835 

h1 Conversion from 6x9 to 8.5 x 11 page size 
!•' Inclusion of legislation adopted from 2010-03 through 2015-26, Zoning & Subdivision Ordinance 
h' Receipt, review and organization of materials 
!•' Updating of preliminary pages (title page, officials page and preface) 
h• New page numbers 
h' Editing 
!•' Proofreading 
!•' Graphics and tabular matter 
h' Proofs 
h' Indexing 
h1 Page formatting (make selection below) 
h' 11 printed3 copies with divider tabs & binders (select binder color below) 
!•' State Law Reference Footnotes (make selection below) 
!•' Printing 1,050 single column pages 

Format Elections (Please circle or check desired elections) 

Font: Times New Roman 
will be used as the font unless otherwise indicated. 

Other font choices include: Helvetica, 
Avant-Garde Demi ,Courier, Palatino, Helvetica Narrow, Century Gothic, Gill Sans and Arial MT 

Font Size: 

Binder Color: 

Binder Stamping Color: 

~ 10 point 

D Semi-Bright Black 

~ Gold 

D 11 point 

Gl Dark Blue 

D Silver 

Please check one option for state law reference footnotes: 

D 12 Point 

D Hunter Green 

DWhite 

D Burgundy 

Gl Updating State Law Reference Footnotes (internal citations not changed) $1,050 

D Removing State Law Reference Footnotes (internal citations not changed) 

D Leaving State Law Reference Footnotes as they are in the code (internal citations remain the same) 

Items not included in base cost 

h' Reorganizing, renumbering or legally reviewing code content 
h1 My Municode or on line code4 

'•' Pages over 1,050 10 point single column pages, per page 
h' Freight 
h• State sales tax 

Payments for republication services 

'•' Execution of agreement 
h' Submission of proofs 
ht Delivery 

3 Municode uses only acid-free paper. 
4 Make Selections on page 6. 

$16 
Actual 

If applicable 

$7,135 
$6,245 

Balance 

Page4 

64



Supplement Service Page Rate5 Quotation Sheet 

Supplement service page rate 

Page Format 

Single Column 

Base page rate above includes: 

!" Acknowledgement of material 
!'' Data conversion, as necessary 
h' Editorial work 
h• Proofreading 
h' Updating the index 
h' Schedule as selected by you6 

!" Updating electronic versions7 and on line code 
h• Printing 11 copies 

Base page rate above excludes: 

Freight 
State sales tax 
Graphics8 & tabular9 matter, per graphic or table 
MyMunicode or online code 

Base Page Rate 

$19.00 per page 

Actual freight 
If applicable 

$10 
Selections on page 6 

Electronic media options for Code of Ordinances (sent via download) 10 

D Folio Bound Views 

D WORD (DOCX) 

D Adobe PDF of the code 

D Adobe PDF of each supplement 

Payment for supplements and additional services: 

!'' Invoices will be submitted upon shipment of project(s). 

$295 initially then $100 per update 

$150 initially then $75 per update 

$150 initially then $75 per update 

$150 initially then $75 per update 

5 All prices quoted in this section may be increased annually in accordance with the Producer Price Index - Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. 
6 Schedule for supplements can be weekly, bi-weekly, monthly, bi-monthly, quarterly, tri-annual, semi-annual, annual or upon 
authorization. Electronic updates can occur more frequently than printed supplements. 
7 We do not charge a per page rate for updating the internet; however a handling fee is charged for PDF, Word, Folio or additional 
electronic media items ordered. 
8 Includes printing all copies. Additional fees apply graphics are printed in color. 
9 Tabular matter is defined as tables, algebraic formulas, or other materials that require special programs or extra editorial time to 
modify and prepare for inclusion in an update. 
10 "delivery" is defined as making updated electronic data available to you via download or FTP. Fee applies whenever content is 
delivered as HTML, PDF, Folio or Word, via one of the afore-mentioned mediums. 

Page 5 

65



Online Services Quotation Sheet 

Elections below will be implemented upon completion of the republication project. 

Please check the appropriate box (es) to indicate your selection: 

Value Pricing: 

Iii MyMunicode11 includes the following: $1,385 annually12 

h' Online Code= MunicodeNEXT 
1'' OrdBank 
h• CodeBank 
h• CodeBank Compare + eNotify 
h• MuniPRO 
-hl Custom Banner 

A la carte pricing: 

In lieu of purchasing the above package, on line services can be purchased a la carte at the following rates: 

D Online Code = MunicodeNEXT (annually) 

Includes: Collapsible TOG (Frameless Version); Mobile Friendly Site; In-line Images and PDF's; 
Social Media sharing, Scrolling Tables and Charts; Narrow, Pinpoint & Advanced Searching; 

$550 

Save as WORD (DOCX), Hide the Table of Contents, Print and Email; Internal Linking within the Code; 
Static Linking/Bookmarking; Server Stability and Disaster Recovery Plan; Phone and Web support for 
Citizens and Staff; & Server Backup Location in Atlanta, GA 

D CodeBank (annually) 

D CodeBank Compare+ eNotify13 (annually) 

D 
D 

MuniPRO Service (annually) 

Custom Banner (onetime fee) 

D MuniDocs (up to 25 documents per year updated quarterly) 

o Additional documents over 25, each 

ORDINANCES PENDING CODIFICATION 
(Only select one option if electing services a la carte) 

Option 1) OrdBank 

D Per ordinance fee 

D Flat annual fee (recommended if MyMunicode is not selected) 

Option 2) Ord Bank+ Ordlink 

D Per ordinance fee 

D Flat annual fee (recommended if MyMunicode is not selected) 

$150 

$250 

$295 

$250 

$300 

$7.50 

$35 

$385 

$60 

$485 

Municode does not charge a per page rate to update the internet- this is all included in the supplement 
per page rate. 

11 Municode does not charge a per page rate for updating the online code (Internet). Your per page supplement rate for the 
codification of new legislation is not affected or reduced by selecting our budget friendly and feature enriched MyMunicode bundle 
package. 
12 Total value if each item were to be purchased a la carte would be approximately $1,880 per year with participation in our 
OrdBank service. 
13 Enrollment in CodeBank is required in order to receive the CodeBank Compare/eNotify technology. 

Page 6 

66



Excellence 
'The code 
update went 
far beyond my 
expectations. 
Everyone at 
M unicode was 
nice to work 
with and 
always 
responded in a 
timely manner. 
Your customer 
service was 
outstanding. 
Thanks again 
for a very 
positive 
experience." 
- Barron, WI 

Republication Scope of Services 

We will handle 100% of the publishing for you. This includes editing, page composition, 
proofreading, indexing, and delivering the information as printed or electronic copy. We 
understand the scope of this project to include a complete republication of your code, 
continued supplementation and on line hosting of your code. Upon completion of the 
republication project, supplementation services will commence. 

Municode would like to offer the following approach for your consideration. 

Project Leader: Dennis Sinnett, Vice President of the Supplement Department 

When we republish your code, pages are recomposed to eliminate short pages, pages with 
blank backs and oddly numbered (point) pages. Following the re-composition, your entire 
code is reprinted and supplement number designations start over with Supplement No. 1. 

The process includes: 

''' Conversion from 6x9 to 8.5 x 11 page size 
h' Removal of supplement numbers; 
(,< Updating of preliminary pages (title page, officials' page, and preface); 
!" New page numbers; 
h< Editing & proofreading; 
h' 10-point font, single column (unless otherwise instructed); 
!" Incorporation of adopted legislation; 
h' Incorporation of maps, diagrams, charts and tables; 
!~' Updating the index; 
'" Proofs provided for your review; 
(,l Posting your newly republished code on MunicodeNEXT; 
"' Printing 11 new copies with binders and tabs. 

The process does not include: 

.f-< Reorganizing the structure of your code; 
!,l Review by an attorney; 
h' Substantive editing or changes to the text. 

Supplemental Updating 

We will handle 100% of the publishing for your code. This includes editing, page composition, proofreading, indexing, 
and delivering the information as printed or via electronic copy. Supplementation will start upon completion of the 
republication project on the schedule selected by the client, starting over with Supplement No. 1. 

Editorial Approach. We use a team approach to editing. This provides for consistency in editing, understanding 
and quality of work for you. 

Ongoing Supplementation. Our goal is to meet and exceed the needs and expectations of our clients. Working 
with you and your staff, we will create whatever supplementation schedule will best serve you and your citizens. 

Page 7 

67



• 
I 

Mnnlcip;i!c.ideC..n;mraliool P.O.il<o<2235Tul1"""-FL:'l2ll16 
lnfu@muolootiaooml OOIJ.2&2633 

lNWW.muni'~ 

This proposal shall be valid for a period of ninety (90) days from the date appearing below unless signed and 
authorized by Municode and the Client. 

Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall begin upon execution of this Agreement and end three years after 
the publication date of the new code. Thereafter, the supplement service shall be automatically renewed from 
year to year provided that each party may cancel or change this agreement with sixty (60) days written notice. 

Submitted by: 

Title: President 

Date: August 25, 2016 

Accepted by: 

CITY OF HOPEWE L;YIRGINIA 

Title: __ c~·~~·~-~1--v _A~H~c~';i~CCJ""<'""*~"'·~----
oate: -~$-~_z~s_· -~2~r::J~·~~·-----

Page 8 

68



69



70



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

71



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

72



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

73



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

74



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

75



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

76



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

77



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

78



DocuSign Envelope ID: C5CF7784-DF8F-4E11-9467-F1C7836C778E

COOVictor D'Aurio

79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Communication between City Councilor and the Treasurer’s Office 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 None 

STAFF:    

Councilor Deborah Randolph 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

92



IR-1 Gore - Request that boards, commissions, committees of council report annually to Council. 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 

 

IR-2 Gore - Local historic marker program 

 

MOTION:            

 

             

 Roll Call 
 

93



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Creation of Ashford Kent Ad-Hoc Committee 

ISSUE:  The Mayor of Hopewell was invited to attend a celebration of the twinning of Ashford 

Kent, UK and the City of Hopewell, Virginia. There were several suggestions made by members 

of this Council and the Twinning Committee.  Ashford Kent has moved the celebration to next 

year. The Mayor would like to create an Ad-Hoc Committee consisting of the Mayor, Vice 

Mayor, Mr. Bragg, and two members of the Twinning Association, to work with the Mayor’s 

office and Ashford Kent to plan a celebration. 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: Action is requested at this meeting 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

94



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

Roll Call  

 

95



9/18/2019 A new Hopewell | Chesapeake Bay Program

https://www.chesapeakebay.net/discover/videos/a_new_hopewell 1/1

A new Hopewell

The Virginia city combined pollution reduction with e�orts to revitalize the city and
reconnect residents to the water

In the city of Hopewell, Virginia, Mayor Jasmine Gore and stormwater manager Joseph Battiata
describe the city’s efforts to combine its pollution reduction goals with projects to revitalize the city and
make it more livable for its residents.

In the 1970s, the city of Hopewell made national headlines after illicit dumping of the toxic pesticide
Kepone sickened industrial workers and forced officials to shut down commercial fishing in the James
River. Today, however, Hopewell is in the middle of a revitalization that is extending beyond businesses
in the heart of the city, in an effort to reconnect residents with their local waters. A new 1,700-foot
boardwalk on the Appomattox River—known as the Riverwalk—will eventually extend to the city marina,
where it will also connect to a greenway established alongside a stream restoration in a neglected park.
That project reduces pollution downstream in the Chesapeake Bay, while also making the outdoors
more accessible and the city more livable for its residents. Listen to Mayor Gore and Battiata describe
how these projects are helping Hopewell, and the lessons they share for local officials across the
Chesapeake watershed.

Produced by Will Parson
Music/Audio: "Purple Light" by Blue Dot Sessions via FreeMusicArchive.org
Special thanks to Jasmine Gore and Joseph Battiata

100



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Local Government Advisory Committee (LGAC) Report 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:   Mayor Jasmine Gore 

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

101



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Randolph – Limiting IR and CCR items 

ISSUE:  Requesting that a work session be set to discuss limiting Council IR and CCR items 

on the agenda 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: Action is requested at the 9-10-19 meeting 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

102



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

IR item – Randolph 0 8-5-19 

ISSUE:  Discussion of Historic Preservation Committee 

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING: Request council action tonight 

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 Historic Preservation Committee page from Boards and Commissions 

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

103



R-2 Partin - New Curb and Gutter Program - Due to the age of the City of Hopewell, 

neighborhoods were built with little regard to best management practices in managing storm water.  

One of the biggest issues facing our neighborhoods, besides the deteriorating roads, is stagnant water 

and flooding.  Because of the neighborhood flooding, our roads are worsening faster and foundations on 

many houses are currently deteriorating.  In order to protect our infrastructure investments and 

homeowner investments, we are seeking council's approval to charge the city manager and the city 

engineer to develop a full plan to install curb and gutter on all streets within the next 15 years, where it 

is physically practical, and to present a plan back to city council within 90-120 days.   

104



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

IR items – Gore – Request to eliminate 3-hour time rule for all Council meetings (new item) 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

105



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Denton – Office keys 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

106



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1
st
 Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2
nd

 Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

IR items – Gore – Request to amend agenda template to include section for Strategic Plan 

updates/progress report (new item) 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

  

STAFF:    

 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

107



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Recognition of Hopewell Tree Steweards 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 None 

STAFF:    

Mayor Jasmine Gore 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

108



 

 

 
SUMMARY: 

Y N       Y N  

□ □ Councilor Debbie Randolph, Ward #1    □ □ Councilor Janice Denton, Ward #5 
□ □ Councilor Arlene Holloway, Ward #2   □ □ Councilor Brenda Pelham, Ward #6 

□ □ Councilor John B. Partin, Ward #3    □ □ Vice Mayor Patience Bennett, Ward #7 

□ □ Mayor Jasmine Gore, Ward #4 
 

 

       

  

 

CITY OF HOPEWELL  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

 

 

Strategic Operating Plan Vision Theme: 

Civic Engagement 

Culture & Recreation  

Economic Development 

Education 

Housing 

Safe & Healthy Environment  

None (Does not apply) 

 

Order of Business: 

  Consent Agenda    

Public Hearing          

Presentation-Boards/Commissions  

Unfinished Business            

Citizen/Councilor Request      

Regular Business 

Reports of Council Committees  
 

 

Action: 

Approve and File  

Take Appropriate Action  

Receive & File (no motion required) 

Approve Ordinance 1st Reading 

Approve Ordinance 2nd Reading 

  Set a Public Hearing       

Approve on Emergency Measure  

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM TITLE:     

Tree City USA 

ISSUE:   

RECOMMENDATION:   

TIMING:  

 

BACKGROUND:  

ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 

 None 

STAFF:    

Mayor Jasmine Gore 

FOR IN MEETING USE ONLY 

MOTION:_____________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Roll Call  

 

109



Board, Commission, Committee Current 

members 

Vacancies 

Ashford Civic Plaza 4 5 

Board of Building Code and Fire Prevention Code Appeals 2 4 

Board of Zoning Appeal 5 0 

Central Virginia Waste Management Authority 1 1 

Community Policy and Management Team  8 3 

Dock Commission 3 2 

Economic Development Authority 5 2 

Historic Preservation Committee 5 7 

Keep Hopewell Beautiful 9 1 

Planning Commission/Wetlands Board 4 1 

Recreation Commission 6 2 (students) 

Social Services Advisory Board 2 5 

Youth Services Commission 10 5 

Water Renewal Commission 6 1 

Virginia Gateway Region 1 1 
 

96



97



Raja Z. Nelson, M.Ed.  
Hopewell, VA 23860 

rajanelson@giftedlearningcenters.com 
804-410-4462 

   
 

13 September 2019 

Hopewell City Council 
300 N. Main Street 
Hopewell, VA 23860 
 
 
Dear Sir or Ma’am,  
 

Please accept this letter as formal notification that Raja Nelson and Rachelle Parrish are resigning from 

the Hopewell Youth Services Commission Board. Effective upon receipt. 

Thank you for the opportunity to represent the youth of Hopewell City for the past couple years. We’ve 

greatly enjoyed and appreciated the opportunities to serve the youth and the community.   

We wish the Board continued success, and we hope to stay active with the community in the future. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Raja Nelson, M.Ed. 
Executive Director 

98



 

 

September 9, 2019 

 

 

Dear Fellow Committee Members and Madame Clerk, 

 

It has been a pleasure serving as Secretary of Keep Hopewell Beautiful and more importantly 

serving with my fellow Committee Members in our efforts to beautify the City of Hopewell.  

Unfortunately, my obligations as a full time student at the University of Virginia have made it 

very difficult to continue my work with this Committee.   

 

I therefore think it best that I resign as Secretary and as a Member at this time.  I will miss you 

all and hope to stay in touch. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Julia E. Bailey 

 

   

99


	Top
	1. Council minutes
	Sep 10 2019 draft minutes

	1. Personnel Change Report
	SEPT 11, 2019 PERSONNEL REPORT

	2. Finance Report
	Implementation Plan Progress Report 08.31.19

	1. Info for Council Review
	PC minutes - 7-11-19
	CPMT August 2019 Minutes

	R-1 CAFR Update
	R-2 Awards Presentation
	CAF 2019 VRPS Awards Presentation
	CAF - Early Learning Nation
	The City of Hopewell- Early Childhood Priority Areas

	R-3 FY20 and FY21 VDOT Revenue
	Countil Action Form Pavement Mangement Program Update
	PAVING PROGRAM PRESENTATION
	FY 2020 Orange Streets
	FY2019-2020 VDOT Blue Streets

	R-4 VDOT Paving
	Countil Action Form FY20 and FY 21 Revenue Sharing Program
	FY2021 and FY 2022 Revenue Sharing Program
	Hill Avenue Detailed Cost Estimate FY 21
	Pavement Rehabilitation Estimate FY 21
	Wagner Avenue Detailed Cost Estimate FY 21

	R-1 Software review
	CAF - review of software
	Municode software agreement
	February 2017 letter from Municode re price increase
	JustFOIA contract - fully-endorsed
	Municode agenda and meeting - fully endorsed

	R-2 Communication with Treasurer
	CAF - communication request Council and treasurer

	R-3 IR item 2
	Gore

	R-4 Ashford Kent
	CAF - Ashford Kent Ad Hoc

	IR-1 Randolph -IR - limiting CCR's
	CAF - Councilor Randolph IR - CCR&#39;s

	IR-2 Randolph IR item - Historic
	Randolph - Historic presrevation

	IR-3 Partin IR
	Partin

	IR-4 IR - Gore - eliminate time limit
	IR - Gore - Eliminate time limit

	IR-5 Denton - key
	CAF - Councilor Denton - key

	IR-6 IR - Gore - request to amend agenda template
	IR - Gore - Request to amend agenda template to include section for Strategic Plan

	IR-7 Tree Steward
	CAF - Hopewell Tree Stewards Recognition

	IR-8 Tree City USA
	CAF - Tree City USA

	Bottom

